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Introduction

CPL had been recognized as the leading
manufacturer of pre m quality cement
waiccks, Faclh vear the eompaany ard (s
products have stood by the conviciion and
the mission statement of providing value
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One Company - Two Facets

Some combinations simply can’t be improved upon as they meet our
recuirements on every level, The classic pencil; a perect graphite point at one
end and a handy eraser al the other end, most ol a person’s writing needs
combined ina single instrumenl. That s how we position ourselves af Cheral
Packaging; a single source that meets your cement packaging needs with our

dual lines (o Jh:-|'f|'slu|='l.|i'|'||- anc kraft PR |.l.'-.|1|'.|l 1=,







One Company - Dual Function

Options enable utility by allowing the individual to select according to
his / her needs and wants. Factors of cost and durability can be adjusted
to specifics,

At Cherat Packaging we believe in diversification, the tried and tested
papersack and the addition of sturdy polypropylene bags. The more
options we provide our customers the more efficient their business.

()4 Cherst Packaging Limited
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One Company - Two Sides

Standard of service and standard of product must both coexist to run a
successful operation. At Cherat Packaging we have consistently kept
both up to shine. As a company Cherat Packaging is recognized for its
clear and transparent business dealings with all our partners, suppliers,
and stakehaolders. On the other, the company’s financial strength and
stability has enabled our customers to rely not only on our product, but
also on our seamless service,

(06 Cherat Packaging Limited
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One Company - Dual Track

At Cherat Packaging we provide our clients the best options to meet their
needs. Papersack or Polypropylene, or both. Our plants guarantee that

whatever your requirement of quantity, print or delivery, we enable choice.
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Vision

To be a preferred

supplier of papersacks
and polypropylene bags
for cement industry

combined with efficient
manufacturing facilities
and safisfied customers.

Mission

To seek increased market share
by anticipating emerging trends
and introducing new products
for meeting the demands of our
valued customers and ensuring
adequate return to our
shareholders.






Strategic Objectives

It is our endeavour lo create value for our
shareholders by ensuring o maximum
return on investment and achieve customer
satisfaction by way ol providing our clients
a world class product.

We aim to develop the longterm
sustainability of the organization by
grooming and training our employees and
providing a congenial work environment,
where they are molivated to perform at the
highest standards. We remain committed
io the highest ethical and moral business
values and to the frue spiril of the Code of
Corporate Governance.
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Core Values

» Achieve excellence in business

» Explore new markets and keep up
with emerging trends

» Strong commitment to quality
* Professional development of work force

» Compliance to the practices of ISO
2001:2008
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Motice is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on
Wednasdery, Oclober 30, 2013 ot 11:00 a.m. at the Ragisiered Office of the Company at Belani
Arcads, Jammud Rood, Peshawar, to irnaact the following business:

CROIMARY BUSINESS

1. Te receive and consider the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2013 and the Reports of the Directors and the Audilon therean.

2. Te approve the payment of final cash dividend @ 20% [Ra.2.00 per share) as meommendad
by the Board of Diractars lor the ﬁmn:iul}mrandulj.lnu 30, 2003,

3. Te appaint the Auditers for the year 2013714 and o fix their remuneration.
4. To ransact any other business with the parmission of the Chair,

By Order of the Board
Abid A. Vazir
F oo uliwm Db &
Karachi: August 19, 2013 Cemmpmarry S rolary
MOTES:
1. The register of members af the Company will ba closad from Wi . Ociobar 23, 2013

o Wednesday, October 30, 2013 (bath days inclusive) and no will be regiserad
during that time, Shares received in arder ai the office of the Registrar of the company- M/s.
Central Depository Company of Pokiston Limited [CDC), CDC House, 998, Block B.
5M.CHS., Main ShahroheFaisal, Karochi7 4400 at the close of business an Tussday,
Cretober 22, 2013 will be raated in fime for the entilement of 20% final cash dividend.

2. A member of the Company sligible 1o ofiend and voie at the Annual General Mealing mey
appaint anather member as his/her proxy to oend ond vole in his,/her stead. Proxias 1o be
aHective must be in writing and must be received by the Company 48 hours belorms the
Mesating.

3. Shareholders of the Compony whease shares are regisiered in their occounty/sub-account with
Cantrol Depasitary System ({CDS) are requested to bring eriginal Mational Identity Cord o
with their scoount number in CDS and participant.s 1D number for verification, In cose
appoiniment of proxy by such account holders ond sub-occount holdars the guidelines as
conimined in SECP s circular of January 24, 2000 are ko be ollowed.

4. The sharehalders of the Company are requesied 1o immadiately natity the Shares Registrar of
tha Compamy of any change in their addrassas.

3. Shareholders wha have not yet submitied pholocopy of their valid Compuerized MNational
ltantity Card {CMIC] om requested to send the sama o the Share Registrar of the company.

é. Sharsholden who want fo receive dividend omount directly in their bank accounts are

requasied bo provide their bank occount desails fo the Share Registor of company / their
Participant / CDC Invesior Account Services Deparimant.
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The Board of Directors

Mr. Mohammed Faruque
{hoirman

Mr. Mohammed Faruque is the
Chairmon of Cherot Packaging
lid. He is alse the Chairman of
Cherat Cement Co. ld and
Gregves Pokiston (Pvt.) Iid ond
mambat of Boord of Direclors of
Mirpurkhas Segar Mills Lid and
Associoled Construciors [Pvl) Lid,
In the post, M. Mohommed
Farugue has served on the Boards
ol prestigious orgonizotions like
Sui Southam Gos Co. Id end
Ablas Insurance Uid as Director,

@ haerad P L‘l:!jll-:_: 1 el i

Mr. Amer Farugque
Chiel Exacytive

Mr. Amer Foreque is the Chief
Execufive of the Company. He is o
Bachelor of Science (BS5) groduwate in
Business Administration majoring in
Monogement J/ Marketing  from
Droke University, Das Moinas, lowa,
USA. He serves os o member of
Boord of Dereclors of Forugue [Pyt
bid, Greaves CHG [Pv.) Id ond
Execufive [Direclor Marketing of
Chero! Cement Co. Ud. Mr. Amar
Farugue is o mamber of the Canira
of Inernational Private Enerprise
|CIPE} and member of the Board of
Governcrs of Ghulom hag Khan
IGIK} Instle of Engineering
Sciences and Technology. He is the
Honorary Comsul of Brozil in
Peshawar.




Mr. Mahmood Faruque
Dhreschor

Mr. Mohmoed Fansque is a Disecior
of tha Company. He s also the
Choirman of Minpurkhas Sugar Mills
bd and o Direclor of Greaves
Pokiston [Pvl.] I, For over 45 yeors
Mr. Mahmeod Fonsgue served as o
member of the Board of Directors of
Jubilss Generol Insyronce Co, Ud,
He wos oppeinied ko serve o o
member  of  the  Privatizotion
Commission of Pakisian,

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani
Dhrncior

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani is an MBA
ond o fellow member of both the
Institute of Charered Accouniants
and Instinde of Cost and
Manogemen!  Accountonts of
Pokision., He has served aos
Chairman Gwodar  Port  and
Cwodar Pord  Implemenkation
Authority from 2004 w0 2004
Mr. Pesnani has been associated
with the Ago Khon Dewelopment
Metwark at senior level for over 35
years. Prasently, he is the Chairman
of First Micro Finance Bank Ud ond
Aga Khan Cullural Service Pakisian
and is a Direclor on the Board of
Jubiles Generol Insyronce Co. Lid
His ossociation with the Ghulom
Faruque Group goes back almast
32 yeors. He currently sarves on the
Boord of Diedors of Cherol
Cement Co. Lid, Mirpurkhas Segar
Mills Lad,
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The Board of Directors

Mr. Aslam Faruque
Direcior

Mr. Aslam Faruque is o groduale
from the LUniversiy o Poeific,
Stachion, USA. with a major in
Marketing. He is the Chief Execufive
el Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Lid and
Unicol 1d. He is on the Boord of
Directors of Greoves Pokiston [P
lid, Greaves Airconditioning [P
Lid and Zensoh (Pvt ] Lid. bn the past,
he hos served os the Choimon of
Pokision Sugor Mills Associofionhi
Sindh Fone, and Direclor of Sui
Sovthemn Gas  Compony  Uid,
Simie lile Insvonce  Corpomtion
of Pakistan and Pakistan Industrial

Development Corporabion,

@ Chermt Packaging Limted

Mr. Shehryar Faruque
Diirechot

. Shehryar Fomesque is o groduole
frem Davis & Elkins College, Elkins,
WY, USA. He is the Direclor
Operotions of Greoves Pokiston
[Pvi.] Lid, He sarvas on the Board of
Directors  of Cheral  Cament
Compony Ud, Forugue [Pet] Lid,
Greovas CHG [Pv.] Lid and Zensah
[Pi] Lid. Mr. Shehrpar Faruque is
oo serving os Direclor of MEBP
Fullerion  Asset  Manogement
Company and Semmit Bank [d.




Mr. Arif Farugque
Dhirechor

Mr. Arf Forugue is o Swiss -
qualiied and aba
haolds master degrees in both low
and business administroafion from the
USA. He is the Chairman of Moenk
Pakistan and the Chief Executive of
Famsque [P} Ud os well as Modian
Hydira Pewer Lid, Ha i an the Baard
of Directars of Mirpurkhas Segor
Mills Ud, Greaves Pakiston (Pvt,] Lid,
Zensoh (Pvt.) lid ond K31 Investment
Bank [d. Besides the ohove, he is a
member of the Boord of Govemors
al Lahese Univarsity of Management
Srisncas.

Mr. Targ Faruque
Diractor

Mr. Targ Foruque greduoted from
Cose Western Resarve Univarsity,
USA. He halds a dual mojor in
Economics and Polihcal Science. He
is o Dweclor of Mispurkhas Sugaor
Mills Uid, Cheral Cement Company
Ud, Fomsgue [Pv)] Ud, Greowes
Pokian [Pvi.] Ld, Greaves
Aircondifioning  [Pvr) bd, Zensoh
[Pt} Uid, Modion Hydro Powser Lid
and Unicol Lid, Mr. Tariq Famnque
was ala o Mamber of the Board of
Diecloes of Odl ond Gos

meanl Comparny as well as
sarved on the Board of Governors of

Marie Adeloide leprosy Cenlre.

Mr. Abrar Hasan
Direschor

Mr, Abror Hoson is the Chief
Executive of Mational Foods sinca
2000. He graduated with a BS in
Indusiriol  Monogement ond o
mingr in  Industrial Enginearing
from Purdue University, Indiana,
L5A. Mr. Hoson hos used his
proficiency in Oparations
Managemenl, Markefing and
Finonce with diligence fo moke
Maotianal Foods one of the largas,
most successful and  innovative
food industries in Pokision, He
was inviled ta join the Board o
Cherat Pockaging Ud oas an
Independent Dhrecior in
Seplember 2010, He is obo o
Director of Majoz Corporation
[Pet.) Ud, Associoted Textile
Consublands [Per) lid, Precision
Rubbar Preducts d and Raoj
Maosolo Py Lid, Australio.
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Directors’Report to the Members
For the year ended June 30, 2013

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
along with the audited accounts for the year ended June 30, 2013,

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Increased cement demand in the country hiod o positive impoct on fhe sobes o bogs produced by your compony. During
the year under review, there has been o rise in the quantity of bogs produced and sold by the company as compared 1o
kost yeor, During its fird full yeor of oparation, fhe PP plont operoled of neor ull copaocity leval o produce high qualsty
cermen bogs fo augment the soles wolume, Higher volumes hod o posifve impoct on the soles fumover and the overoll
profiability of the compony os the company confinued o consolidabe its. position in fhe morked os the prefermed supplier
of quolity pockoging solubions,

The financial highlights bor the current year and fhat of last year are indicated below:

* Mot sales [PKR) 4,129.33 J,256 .88
®  Gross Profit [PKR) 436853 27823
*  Met Profit PKR] 118.57 F1.53
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FINAMCIAL PERFORMAMNCE

There has been o rise of approximately Rs. 873 million in the sales revenue of tha company, reflecting an
increase of 27% hom the last year. Higher sales revenue wos possible on tha back of increasa in the quantity of
bags sold by the compony following the addition of polypropylene bog plant, which had first hill year of
opesations this year. Although, rise in inpul cosis and devalvation of Pok rupes had on odverse impact on the
production costs through prolicient preduction of high quality bogs, oggressive marketing of 2ply paper bogs
and eHicient inventory managemant, the company was able o overcoma the challenge. Further, expert of PP
bags alsa helped in explaring new marksts for the company and contributed o its profitability. During the year
under raviaw, there wos o siighl increasa in linonce cost over kasi, de;piln decling in discount rate, dus o highar
warking capilal requiremants owing to increased volume of operations and acquisition of long term lean for the
polypropylena plant. Further, last year the company had mark up subsidy available up o December 31, 2011
announced by Siate Bank of Pakiston lor companies operafing in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Pravince. Abtar iaking infe
consideration fhe lociors explained abaove, the company recorded an impressive aler tax probit of Rs. 118.57
millian.

EXPANSION OF PFOLYPROPYLENE PROJECT

We wish lo update cur sharehalders that the second line of the palypropylene plant far manufachsring cement
bags has been installed and commissioned al the factary in July 2013, The plant, which has alsa been acquired
from M/s. BEW G Windmoller & Holschar, is the most advanced and the fastest machine in the warld. By vitue
of this axpansion, the production capacity of the palypropylene plant of the company has increased ta 105
million bags per annum. Another 40 million bag capocity will be added in the second phase next year, which
will ke the capacity of the PP plant 1o 145 millien bogs per annum.
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By wiilizing its available financial and operational depariure  therefrom  has  been  adequalely
leverage, tha company is conbidant of gaining lurther disclosed and explained.

A b aasban Sl o o ks el Jec The system of internal controls is sound in design
in cemen! pockoging. Additionally, by virue of this ; _

expansion, the company will be able to better allocate ﬂnd_ husl been effectively implemented ond
its lixed costs and will allew it 1o preduce best quality s :

bogs for various preduct calegories ond copitalize on There are no significont doubts on the company,.s
its strong relationship with the existing customer base. ability to continue as o going concern,

Further, expart of empty PP bags and manufochuiring of .
PP bags lar pocking other products like sugar, There hos bean no moleriol departure trom the bas

chemicals, rice, fertilizer and other similar products F’“*:_'E":_“" of E‘“'FF’“"? governanca, as datailed in
shall lurther improve the pesition of the company. the listing regulations.
DIVIDEND ® Key operafing ond financial data for last six (&)

yaars in summarized form is annexed.
Al its meeting held on August 19, 2013 the Boord of

Directors hos proposed o cosh dividend @ 20% [Rs, The Company has been declaring regulor
2,00 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2013. The  dividends 1o its shareholders.

opproval of members for cosh dividend will be
obloined of the Annuol Genergl Meeting o be held on on occount of taxes, duties, levies and charges

October 30, 2013. axcapl for those which ore baing mode in normal
CORPORATE S5OCIAL RESPONSIBILTY course of business.

The Company actively parficipates in various social The Company mu_inh:lim Provident and Gratuity
work initiatives s part of its corporale social Fund occounts bor its employees. Stated below are

respansibility. Being o conscientious member of the the values of the investments of the fund as an June

cofporate  community, the Company contribules 30, 2013.

generously bo various social and charitoble couses e
including towards health and education sackars. In this Provident Fund Rs, 60.11 million
regard, B has worked with ma reputable -
arganizofions and NGO in Pakislon. ﬁ:e Company Totuly fone Rs. 25.71 million
has always siood by the people of Pakistan in thair hour
of need ond shall always continue to do 5o,

Thera is nnlhin? oufstanding against your company

During the year, five meefings of the Board of
Direclors were convened. The attendance record of

Being o responsible corporate citizen, the Company
remained commilled lo confinuous improvement in
Health and Salely ospecis. The production facility

Name of Director

5
i

remained fully compliant with indusiry and 3
enwvironmental  slondards  along  with  solely
requirements and there was na occupafional accident 2
ta our siaff.
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AMD FINAMCIAL mood Faruque 2
REFCETING FRAMEWORK
+ The finoncial stotements prepored by the 4
monagement of the compony present ifs stale of
atfairs foirly, the result of its operafions, cosh Aows 3
ond chongas in equity.
* Proper books of accoum of the company have bean 9
R s
*  Appropriale  accounfing  policies  have  bean
consistently applied in preparation of financial m 2
statements and accounting estimates are based an
e a
& [nfernofional Finoncial Reporing Stondards, as
opplicoble in Pokiston, hove been followed in
preparation  of finonciol  stofements ond any

@ el Packomrm Lsmibed




* Mr. Tarig Fareque was coopled os o director on the
sad demizse of Mr, Igbal Forugue.,

= [Dyring the year, four meefings of the Audit
Committee were convened, The ottendonce record
of each member is as follows:

Name of Director Meetings Attended
Mr. Mohaommed Foruque 4

Mr, Iqbal Farusqus 2

Mr. Aslam Farvgue 4

Pattern af sharehalding is annexed with the repan,

Mo 1|:r_1r.|ii|-E in the shares of the Company was
mode by the Chiel Execulive, Directars, Chiel
Financial Officer and Company Secialary and their
spouses and minor children during the year excep
fie :.ul'.u-l.'liplir:ln af righr shares issued |:|:r the

COHTIpRIIY.
Eamings per share [EPS] during the yeor wos Rs.
3.42 compared lo Bs. 3.3% lost year,

CONTRIBUTION TO MATIOMAL EXCHEQUER

The Company contributed ower Rs. one [1] billion io the
Government ireasury in shope of faxes, excise duty,
income tox and sales fox,

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Growth in the demond for cement has hod o positive
impoct on the sales of the Company. This growth

Karochi: August 19, 2013

poftern is expecied to conlinve os the compony siands
to benefil in the form of enhonced soles of bags os it is
well positioned to meel the reguirements for both poper
and PP bogs. The company is foking steps to diversity
its target markets by producing PP bogs lor poacking
sugar, chemicols, rice and other similor products.
Further, exporl of empty PP bogs shall hurther improve
the posifion of the company. The instollalion of second
P# phont shall help boost the sabes of the company and
coniribute to its profilability. |t will also consolidole the
posifion of the compony os the morket leader in
providing quality packaging solutiens, However, rising
cost of input items like kroft poper, energy costs and
depreciofion of Pok pee vis-avis US dollor and Evro
curmency has put pressure on production costs, In arder
o effectively face such chollenges, the Company is
moking concered eforts to not only improve its coshs
ond operotionol efficiencies, which con be seen by
successful lounch of 2ply 80 gsm bogs but olso
opfimize fhe ulilization of its ovoiloble resources,

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. Ermnst & Young Ford Rhodes
Sidat Hyder, Chorfered Accounionts, refire ond being
eligible, ofier themselves for reappoiniment,

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The monogemen! would like o express its grafitede o
oll customers, financiol insfilvtions, sioff members,
suppliers and shoreholders who hove been associated
with the company for their conlinved support and
ceoperation, It would like to parficulardy thank Mendi
Packoging and BSW h Windmoller & Holscher for their
cooperation and support io the company.

On beholf of the Board of Diredtors
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

This siaterment is baing presented 10 comply with the Code of Corponote Governance contained in listing regulations of
Konachi and Lahore Skock Exchanges lor the puipese of establshing o homework of good govemance, wheeby o [aled
company ks managed in campliance with the best prochices of corporate governance.

The company hos applied the principles contained in the COG in the following mamnmnes:

1. The company encourages represeniafion of Indomhm MonExecutive Directors and direciors representing minority
inlmresty on iy Board of Direcikors. Al prasen thas o inchiclms:

Cabegory I

. Abrar Hasan

3

Indepandent Direclor

Executive Direcior . Amer Farugque

. Mohammed Farugue
. Mahmood Farugue

. Akbarali Pesnani

- Aslam Farugue

. Shehryar Faruque

- Arif Farugque

. Tarig Faruque

MomExecutive Direclors

FF O

The indapandsnt dinscior mask tha criena of indspendencs undar elausa | [b) of he Cods of Conparaie Gevamancs.

2. The direcion have confirmed fiol none of fem ie serving o3 o deecior on mone than seven Toed compoanies, inchading iz
company [exchiding the listed subsidiaries of ksted holding companies where appheable).

3. All the residant directors of the compary are registersd as ixapayers and none of tham has defoubed in payment of any loan o a
banking company, o DFl or an MBFl or, being o member of o siock exchonge, hos been declored as o defouber by thal siock

exchange
4. A eowal vasaney thal sccured on the Board an 7.2.2013 was filled up by tha dirsctars within 20 days

5. The company hos prepared o §Code of Conduch ond has ensured thal appropriole seps hove been loken o dissemingie §
thicughout the company clong with i supporting policies and procedurnes

&, The boord has developed o vision/mission sioemeni, overal comporate sralegy ond significant policies of #e company, A
comphsie record of parfculors of dgnificont policies olong with fe doles on which hey were opproved o omendied hos been
maiflasned.

7. Al the pewers of the board hove basn duly sxscised and decidens an maledial rensactiond, ncluding sppointmant and

dedprmanation of remursrafion and ermi ond condons of employment of fue CED, ofher emecyfive and nonacecusive direciorns,
hive: been taken by fhe board.

B, The mestngs of the board wers presided over by the chaltman and, In his absancs, by o direcior elactesd by the board for fis
pupose and the boord met ofleos once every quorer, Wikien nofices of fhe boord meslings, olong with ogendo ond warking
papers, were circulaled allens seven days beloe the meshings. The miniles of fhe meelings weie appropeialely recorded and
ireulased

%, The Direciors of Cheral Pockaging bd, one professionally quolifed ond expeienced persons ond are wal aware of twir dutles
and ther responsibilities. Further, an onenlalion course Sor Directons was anonged by the company o opprse Dieclons of thei
duties and responsibilsiss. Twe Dirsciers of the company are alss cerfind undar e Board Developemeant Series Pragram offersd
by Pokision Inginte of Comporsie Gowemance [PCG)

1. The board has approved appoiniment of RO, Comparry Secislary and Heod of Internal Audit, including their remunerabion and
ssrms and eondinans of smplsyman,

11, The Direcions,, report for his yeor hos been preporsd in complionce with e requeremaents of e Code of Corponote Governonce
and bully describes the salient maters required 1o be disclosed.

12, The financiol totsmants of ha company were duby andarsad by CEO and CRO bafore appreval of tha baard,

@ Cheral Packagring Linvibed




13 llrﬂirmhraffﬂmﬂEWmdnrﬂm&dm?immm shares of the company other than Sat disclased in the pafen
shargholding,

14, The compary has complied with oll the corparate and financial reparing requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance
15. The boord hos lormed on Auvcdd Commities. 1| compases of tiee memben who ate MonExecutee Chedon.

16, The meelings of the oudit commites were held ofleast once every quarer pricr o opproval of interim and Final resuls of the
company and o3 requicsd by the CCG. The feems of reference of e commities hove been formed and odvised 1o the commities

for compliance

17, The bowd hos lemed o Humon Rescocss ond Remunerohion Commities, B comprizes of fres mambers of whom wo am
nomexscuive directors and the chairman of the commiies is o MNon Execusive Director

18. The boord ho sl up on efective inemal ouds hmchon

19, The sondory ouditors of the compony have conlirmed #hat ey hove been given o sofslociory rafing under the quolity conrol
teviww progromime of the ICAR, thal ey o any ol e porinens of the fem, their spowsaes and minor children do nol hoid shares
ol the company and that the firm ond all it parners are in complionce with Inkernasional Federafon of Accountants IFAC)
guidalings on code of alhics o3 odopled by the ICAF,

20, The gatulory auditors or he persons associoled with them have nat beon appairted ko provide ofher services excepl in
oucordancy with the lising regulafon: ond the ouditers hove corfimad that they hove cbserved IFAC guidelines in this regond.

21, The sclosed perod... prior o the anncuncement of interim,/inal results, and business decisions, which may materiolly affect the
marke! price of compary, s securifes, wos delermined and infmaled o direcion, emplorees ond sock exchongels).

22, Maerial/price sensifive information has besn disseminaied among all market paricipants ot once hrough stack sxchangely

23. The Reloied Porty fronsochons bove been ploced belors the Acdit Commifies ond opproved by the Boord of Direclor alongwith
pricing methads for such ronsactions

24.  Wa confum that all other molerial principles enshoned in e Code of Coporole Govemance have been compled with

On beholf of the Boord of Direclors
-

Mohommed Farugue
Korochi: August 19, 2013 Chairman

Statement of Compliance with the Best
Practices of Transfer Pricing

The company has fully complied with the best practices of Transler Pricing as contained in the Listing Regulations of the

Siock Exchangas.
On behalf of the Board of Directors
—‘-'
Mohammed Farugue
Korachi: August 19, 2013 Chairman

Arimial Repaord 5003 @




Review Report to the Members on Statement
of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

P B 15540, Kiornchi 75530, Fokision

2k ) Tl: 47221 8450007
EY Bullding a l]L'!lEE!r Fax #7231 15681065
working world ———

We have reviewed the Sialement of Compliance with the best practices conlained in the Code of Corporte
Govemance [the Code) for the yeor ended 30 June 2013, prepared by the Boord of Direclors of
Cherat Packaging Limited [the Company] to comply with the Listing Regulations of Karachi and Lohore Stock
Exchanges, where the Company is listed.

The responsibdity for complionce with the Code is that of the Boord of Directors of the Company. Ouwr
responsibility is 1o review, ko the edent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Stalement
of Complionce reflacts the skalus of the Company, s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if i
does nod. A review is imiled primarily 1o inquinies of the Company personnel and review of vanows documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

#s part of cur audit of knancial statements, we ane required 1o obioin an understanding of the accounting and
nternal control systems sufficient ko plan the cudit and develop an eflective audit approach. 'We ane not required
lo consider whether the Board, s ssotement of internal controd covers all risk and controls, o 1o form an opinion cn
the eflactiveness of such internal controls, the Company, s corporate governance procedures and risks.

Further, Lisfing Regulofions of Karochi and Lohare Stock Exchanges requires the Companry o ploce before the
Board of Directors for their consideration and approval relaled porty tronsocfions distinguishing  bebeseen
tramsoctions carmied out on lerms equivalent ko thase that prevail in am,s kength ransaciions and ransacions
which are not executed of arm,s length price, rmmﬂirgg‘upﬁhﬂifkﬁhnhuﬁguﬁhuhmﬂh prcing
mechanism. Further, all such transoctions are also required o be separalely ploced before the Audit Commifies.
We are anly required and have ensured compliance of requirement 1o the extent of approval of relaled party
tramsactions by the Board of Direchors and placement of such transactions bebore the Audit Commitiee. W have
not camied out any procedures ko delermine whether the reloled party mansacions were underaken ot am, s

length price or nat.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our oienfion which couses us bo believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriakely reflect the Company, s compliance, in all malerial respects, with the best
proctices contained in the Code of Corporote Governance for the year ended 30 June 2013

Lt 1 Y= Pt JR A Bl F st
Chartered Rocountants
Karoch: August 19, 2013

@ Cheral Packagmg Limsled




Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct of the Company is based on the principles of honesty, infegrity
ond professionalism of every stage.

Product Qualiry
Regulkarly updale ourselves with lechnalogical advancements and emerging trends lo
produce bogs/socks under the highes! standards and mainkain oll relevant technical
ond professional slandards,

Dealing with Em
Pravide congenial work almasphere where all employees are healed with respect and
dignity. Recognize ond reward employees based on their perdormance and their ability
ko meel -g::::uls and ﬂbiE‘:"i\’El.

ibility to Interested Parties
To be ohjeclive, fair and ransparent in our dealings with people who have reposed
their confidence in us.

Financial Reporting & Internal Controls
To implement an effective and transparent system of financial reporting and inlemnal
confrals o saleguard the interesl of our shareholders ond Rullill the regulalory

requirements.

Procurement of Goods & Services
Only purchose goods and services that are tailored 1o our requirement and are priced
oppropriciely, Before laking decision aboul procurement of any goods or services,

oblain quotafions from various sources.

Conflict of Interest

All the octs and decisions of the management be motivated by the inlerest of the
Company and aclivities and invelvements of the directors and employess in no way
conflict with the inferest of the Company.

Adherence te Laws of the Land
To hulfill all slobutory requirements of the Government and its requlalory bodies and
follow relevant and applicable lows of fhe couniry.,

We recognize the need for working with optimum efficiency lo attain desired levels of
perormance. We endeavor to conduct our business with honesty and inegrity, and 1o
produce and supply bogs/sacks with care and competence so that customers receive
the quality they iruly deserve,

Avrinaal Beport 2003 @




Year-Wise Statistical Summary

EEEEETTES 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(Bags in million)
Peoghuction 21352 17480 17944 12124 122.44 140,48 11459
Dispaiches 21687 17047 12857 12282 122.40 140.58 11427

{Rs. in O00Q)

ASSETS EMPLOYED
Fied aisset - kangibde 13264585 943,213 453400 3494619 393807 1960461 152484
Fixad ossedy - inkangible 6,607 7513 6,375 5,143 540
Lansg tem imvestmant,
lnans and deposits 21,957 15,734 2717 3,344 4168 S1.775 51,271
Cobwred waxation 81,052 96,584 45 863 . . .
Clament assels 2135393 1367884 1281685 742858 1,117554 1293114 658524
TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED 3560 474 2432938 1,790220 1120842 1516070 1540950 @&70.281
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharshclders' squity 1211844 911,120 B78,0487 473441  37RI7E  AD7ED2  A7A593
Larg wim liobilses 480000 418750 54250 93750 131,250 25000 50,000
Defaired Babilites - . . 1.818 12,632 A5772 6449
Current lickilifin: 1889430 1,103,059 BS5903 551,753 993912 1052476 419239
TOTAL FUMND INVESTED 3560 474 232008 1790200 1120942 1.516070 1.540950 870281
TURNOVER & PROFIT
Turrevur (natf 4129334 3254878 2471944 1985235 2080414 1851414 1175404
Operafing Probt 332348 208044 FIF0A2 19180 118397 152817 144015
Pecdit befors foxafion 175,395 53491 145811 95442  [58351) 104,425 1156207
Froht afwr mxofion 118 549 71,531 187455 %4319 Q@521 Flles 79576
Cash dividend 55,080 25818 43,031 18,340 . 11,014 11,750
b of borws shares . . - 72,950 . 18,340 14 ABB

@ Cheral Padckaging Lirmsled




Ratio Analysis

ki | 2013 | 2012 |
| Guoss Profit {perceniogs| 1057 .54
2 Operling Frokil [pescenkoge) 805 6,39
3 Profit Before Tax |percentoge) 425 1.84
4 Proit Aber Tax [pecemage] 287 2.20
5 Prohi ko Averoge Share Holder's Equity [percenings) 11.17 g.00
& Earnings per shone - Before Tan 801 2.54
7 Eomings per shore - Aller Tox 547 3.3¢
B Profil o Tolol Assels [Avrcge ofier lax) [perceniogs) 267 232
P Incredsa in Sales [MNet parceniogeal 2879 31.75
10 Rerw Materiol 55 of Met Soles 80.73 &7 09
11 lobour % of Met Soles 3.08 2.44
12 Oftver Cosh of Sokes Expenges % of Met Soles 241 1.93
13 Row Moleriol as % of Cost of Soles #0.28 P3.23
14 Adminisobe Expenses %o of Mel Soles 077 077
15 Distribution Cost % of Met Sales 1.33 121
16 Tox % ol Mat Sales 1.38 [0.55)
17 Finonce cost % of Mel Soles 2.80 e
Short Term Sobvency:
| Working Copital Rakio 1.13 1.24
2 Acid Test Rotio 051 0.54
3 Werking Capital Tumewver [Mat Salea] fimes 1 &.80 12.21
4 Inveniory Turnover / Times 3.80 3.41
Owverall Voluotion ond Asssssment;
| Musrber of Tiee Interest Covened 212 1.35
2 Return on Equity aher o |Averoge in percaniage)] 11.17 8.00
3 Book Value Per Share 44,00 5293
4 long Tarm Debls ko Equity Ratio 2958 3337

Anrnsal Repsoet 2013 @




Progress Graphs

- Prafit trends
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Wiealth and its
clistribwition curing 2012-13

m Govermnment 15%
» Material ond Services 7%

Financial Insfitutions 2%
i Ernphj.ws 3%
m Shareholders and Equity 3%

Wiealth amd its
distribwition during 2011-12

= Government 13%
» Material and Services 78%
« Financial Institufions 4%
n En'plnn}m 3%
m Sharehclders and Equity 2%
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

Building a better
working world

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Cherat
Packaging Limited (the Company) as at 30 June 2013
and the related profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement
of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to
establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity
with the approved accounting standards and the requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the above said statements are free
of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining

on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the
overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
and, after due verification, we report that:

a) inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept
by the Company as required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

Eirt ¢

Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Riaz A. Rehman Chamdia

KARACHI: August 19,2013

@ Cherat Packaging Limited

A Fort folts A Hyorn

b)

d)

Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
Chartered Accountants
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road

P.O.Box 15541, Karachi 75530, Pakistan

Tel: +9221 35650007
Fax: +9221 35681965

www.ey.com

in our opinion:

i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account
together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance,
1984, and are in agreement with the books of
account and are further in accordance with
accounting policies consistently applied, except for
the change as stated in note 2.3 to the financial
statements, with which we concur;

i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

i) the business conducted, investments made and the
expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Company;

in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the balance
sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive
income, cash flow statement and statement of changes
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof,
conform with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required
by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as ot 30 June 2013
and of the profit, the comprehensive income, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended;
and

in out opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the
Zakat and Ushr Ordinance. 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central
Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.




Balance Sheet
as at June 30, 2013

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 1,336,465 943,213
Intangible asset 5 6,607 7,523
1,343,072 950,736
Longterm investment 6 12,874 6,553
Longterm loans 7 250 348
Longterm deposits 8,833 8,833
Deferred taxation 8 61,052 96,584
1,426,081 1,063,054
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 9 48,492 32,277
Stock-intrade 10 1,171,125 771,357
Trade debts 11 633,907 430,164
Loans and advances 12 4,613 1,376
Trade deposits and shortterm prepayments 13 8,469 4,303
Other receivables 14 64,394 58,646
Taxation - net 29 183,853 40,314
Cash and bank balances 15 20,540 31,447
2,135,393 1,369,884
TOTAL ASSETS 3,561,474 2,432,938
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 16 275,400 172,125
Reserves 17 936,444 739,004
1,211,844 911,129
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Longterm financings 18 460,000 418,750
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 19 577,535 95,167
Accrued mark-up 42,775 53,974
Shortterm borrowings 20 1,210,570 916,418
Current maturity of longterm financings 18 58,750 37,500
1,889,630 1,103,059
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,561,474 2,432,938

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

W AMER FARUQUE

Chairman Chief Executive

Annual Report 2013 @




Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended June 30, 2013

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit

Finance costs
Profit before taxation

Taxation
Current

Deferred

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

22

23

24
25
26

27

28

29

30

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

f“‘ﬂ‘///’
OHAMMED FARUQUE

Chairman

@ Cherat Packaging Limited

-~

4,129,334 3,256,878
(3,692,801) (2,978,650)
436,533 278,228
(54,865) (39,401)
(31,646) (24,959)
(22,063) (9,984)
(108,574) (74,344)
4,389 4,260
332,348 208,144
(156,953) (154,653)
175,395 53,491
(21,294) (32,681)
(35,532) 50,721
(56,826) 18,040
118,569 71,531
(Restated)
Rs. 5.42 Rs. 3.39

Il

AMER FARUQUE
Chief Executive




Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended June 30, 2013

Profit for the year 118,569 71,531

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gain on availableforsale
securities 6,321 4,562

Total comprehensive income for the year 124,890 76,093

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

W AMER FARUQUE

Chairman Chief Executive

Annual Report 2013 @




Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended June 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortization
Gain on disposal of operating property, plant and equipment
Dividend income
Exchange loss
Finance costs

Increase in current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock-intrade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and shortterm prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Net income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to operating property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Proceeds from sale of operating property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset acquired
Dividend received
Longterm loans
Long+erm deposits
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long+erm financing
Dividend paid
Shares issued at premium
Shortterm borrowings
Finance costs paid
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

4.1.3
5.1
27

26
28

15

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

k“%/"/
OHAMMED FARUQUE

Chairman

@ Cherat Packaging Limited

175,395 53,491
65,332 52,152
916 784
(336) (1,033)
(664) :
7,711 5,007
156,953 154,653
229912 211,563
405,307 265,054
(16,215) (19,395)
(399,768) 106,798
(203,743) (161,940)
(3,237) 3,373
(4,166) (966)
(5,748) (5,753)
(632,877) (77,883)
482,150 (20,849)
254,580 166,322
(164,833) (20,340)
89,747 145,982
(190,294) (644,024)
(268,969) 101,466
1,015 1,826
- (1,932)
664 -
98 202
- (8,657)
(457,486) (551,119)
62,500 362,500
(25,601) (42,800)
201,644 '
294,152 247,767
(175,863) (139,653)
356,832 427814
(10,907) 22,677
31,447 8,770
20,540 31,447

Il

AMER FARUQUE

Chief Executive




Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended June 30, 2013

RESERVES

L Reserve (loss) / gain

DD AR U on available- It
happro reserves
Share General prioted Subotdl forsale

Premium Reserve : "
profit securities

Balance as at July 01, 2011 172,125 184,805 180,000 343,243 523,243 (2,106) 705,942 878,067

Cash dividend for the year ended

June 30,2011 @Rs. 2.5/-per share - > S (43,031) (43,031) S (43,031) (43,031)
Profit for the year - - - 71,531 71,531 - 71,531 71,531
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 4,562 4,562 4,562
Total comprehensive income - - - 71,531 71,531 4,562 76,093 76,093
Balance as at June 30, 2012 172,125 184,805 180,000 371,743 551,743 2,456 739,004 911,129
Balance as at July 01, 2012 172,125 184,805 180,000 371,743 551,743 2,456 739,004 211,129
Cash dividend for the year ended

June 30,2012 @Rs. 1.5/-per share - - - (25,819) (25,819) - (25,819) (25,819)
Issue of right shares 103,275 103,275 - - - - 103,275 206,550
Right shares issue expenses - (4,906) - - - - (4,906) (4,906)
Profit for the year - - - 118,569 118,569 - 118,569 118,569
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 6,321 6,321 6,321
Total comprehensive income - - - 118,569 118,569 6,321 124,890 124,890
Balance as at June 30, 2013 275400 283,174 180,000 464,493 644,493 8,777 936,444 1,211,844

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

m AMER FARUQUE

Chairman Chief Executive

Annual Report 2013 @




Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2013

2.2

2.3

2.4

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Cherat Packaging Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public company limited |13'
shares in the year 1989. Its main business activity is manufacturing, marketing and sale of paper sacks an
polypropylene bags. The Company is listed on Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges.

ThT( registered office of the Company is situated at 1st Floor, Betani Arcade, Jamrud Road, Peshawar,
Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. AEproved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention except for available-
forsale securities that have been measured at fair value in accordance with IAS 39; Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs

which became effective for the current year:

[AS 1 —  Presentation of Financial Statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income (Amendment)

IAS12 - Income Taxes -Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendment)

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any material effect on the financial statements.
Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective

standard or interpretation:
Standards or interpretation Effecl'lve c!at? LTI
periods beginning on or after)

IFRS7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures — (Amendments)

Amendments enhancing disclosures about offsetting

of financial assets and financial liabilities 01 January 2013
IAS19 -  Employee Benefits — (Revised) 01 January 2013

IAS32 -  Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
liabilities — (Amendment) 01 January 2014

IFRIC20 - Sh;i{)ping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surtace Mine 01 January 2013

@ Cherat Packaging Limited




2.5

The Company expects that the adoption of the above revision, amendments and interpretation of the standards
will not affect the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application other than the amendments
to IAS 19 ‘Employees Benefits’. Such amendments range from fundamental changes to simple clarification
and re-wording. The significant changes include the following:

*  For defined benefit plans, the ability to defer recognition of actuarial gains and losses (i.e., the corridor
approach) has been removed. As revised, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income when they occur. Amounts recorded in profit and loss are limited to current and past service
costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income (expense). All other changes in the net
defined benefit asset (liability) are recognized in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
recycling fo profit and loss.

*  The distinction between shortterm and other long+erm employee benefits will be based on the expected
timing of settlement rather than the employee's entitlement to the benefits.

e Objectives for disclosures of defined benefit plans are explicitly stated in the revised standard, along
with new or revised disclosure requirements. These new disclosures include quantitative information of
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to a reasonably possible change in each significant
actuarial assumption.

While the Company is currently assessing the full impact of the above amendments which are effective from
annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013, it is expected that the adoption of the said amendments
will result in change in the Company's accounting policy related to recognition of actuarial gains and losses
(refer to note 3.12 to the financial statements) to recognize actuarial gains and losses in total in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

In addition to the above amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued
by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01
January 2013. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material
impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date (annual

Standards periods beginning on or after)
IFRS9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 01 January 2015
IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements 01 January 2013
[FRS 11 - Joint Arrangements 01 January 2013
IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 01 January 2013
IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement 01 January 2013

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount

of the asset or liability affected in future periods. The management continually evaluates estimates and
judgments which are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under current circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
judgments which are significant to the financial statements:
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2.5.1

2.5.2

2.5.3

2.5.4

3.1

Staff retirement benefits

Cerfain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 19.1 to the financial statements for
valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any change in these
assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rate, expected rate of return on assets, future salary increases and
mortality rates.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is
made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical
resources available with the Company. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying
amount of respective item of operating property, plant and equipment, with corresponding effects on the
depreciation charge and impairment.

Taxation
Current

In making the estimate for income tax payable, the Company takes into account the applicable tax laws and
the decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. Instance where the Company's view differs
from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers
that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingency.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused
tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
can be utilised.

Stock-in-trade, stores, spare parts and loose tools

The Company reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock-intrade, stores and spare parts and loose
tools to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values. NRV is estimated with reference to the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment except leasehold land and capital work-inprogress are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Leasehold land and capital workinprogress are
stated at cost. Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method except for computers,
which are depreciated by using the straightine method, at the rates mentioned in note 4.1.1 to the financial
statements.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements
which increase the asset's remaining useful economic life or the performance beyond the current estimated
levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Gains or losses on disposal of operating property, plant and equipment, if any, are recognized in the profit
and loss account.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If such indications exist and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to the recoverable
amounts.

Depreciation is charged from the month of the year in which addition / capitalization occurs while no
depreciation is charged in the month in which an asset is disposed off.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of such assets can also be measured reliably.

Computer software and implementation costs that are directly associated with the computer and computer
controlled machines which cannot operate without the related specific software, are included in the cost of
respective assets. Software which is not an infegral part of the related hardware is classified as intangible asset.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. Intangible
assets are amortized on straight line method when assets are available for use. Amortization is charged
from the month of the year in which addition / capitalization occurs while no amortization is charged in
the month in which an asset is disposed off.

Investments
Available-for-sale securities

These are non-derivative financial assets which are intended to be held for an indefinite period but may be
sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates.

These investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial measurement,
availableforsale financial securities are subsequently measured ot fair value with unrealized gains or losses
recognized as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale reserve until the investment is derecognized,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other operating income, and removed from the
availableforsale reserve.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
These are valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost is determined on weighted average basis less provision
for obsolete and slow moving items except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value plus other

charges incurred thereon.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools on an annual basis and
provision is made for obsolescence.

Net realizable value represents estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Stock-in-trade

Raw materials

Raw materials are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and NRV.

Cost signifies purchase cost and other direct expenses.

ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
Finished goods

Finished goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and NRV.

Net realizable value represents estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts

Trade debts are recognized at invoice value less provision for uncollectible amounts. Provision for doubtful
debts is based on management's assessment of customer’s credit worthiness. Bad debts are written-off when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized in case of assets, when the contractual rights
under the instrument are realized, expired or surrendered and in case of a liability, when the obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Any gain / (loss) on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in
the profit / (loss) for the period in which it arises.

Foreign currency translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees (functional currency) ot the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current
and savings accounts with commercial banks.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and

revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.
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3.11.1

3.11.2

3.12.2

3.13

3.14

3.14.1

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales is recognized upon passage of title to the customers which generally coincides with

physical delivery.

Other operating income

-Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive such income is established.
- Other revenues are accounted for on accrual basis.

Staff retirement benefits

Gratuity scheme

The Company operates an approved and funded gratuity scheme for all eligible employees who have
completed the minimum qualifying period of service. The scheme is administered by the trustees nominated

under the trust deed. Contributions to the scheme are made in accordance with actuarial valuation using

Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the cumulative unrecognized actuarial
gains or losses exceed 10% of the higher of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets as
of the end of previous reporting period. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected remaining
working lives of employees participating in the scheme.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. If benefits have already vested, immediately following the introduction of, or change to the
scheme, past service costs are recognized immediately.

The amount recognized in balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligations as
adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Provident fund

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for all permanent employees
who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal monthly contributions are made by
the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation
Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates
and exemptions, if any. The tax charge as calculated above is compared with turnover tax under section
113 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, and whichever is higher is provided in the financial statements.

The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made

in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.
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3.14.2 Deferred

3.14.3

3.16

3.17

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses, if any, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary differences and
tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recognized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirement of Accounting
Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, if considered material.

Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of amount of sales tax except:

*  Where sales tax incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

*  Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in balance sheet if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or to realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses arising from
such assets and liabilities are also offset accordingly.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost
of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed out in the period they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Impairment

The carrying values of the Company's assets except for inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication

exists the assets recoverable amount is estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the profit and
loss account.
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Transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms, as approved by the Board, substantiated

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and

3.18 Related party transactions
as given in note 33 to the financial statements.

3.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
these are approved.

3.20 Functional and presentation currency
presentation currency.

4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating property, plant and equipment
Capital work-inprogress

4.1 Operating property, plant and equipment

4.1.1

4.1 1,065,150 940,867
4.2 271,315 2,346
1,336,465 943,213

Following is a statement of operating property, plant and equipment:

Book value

I o Yk g e e o SRR
2012 theyear  the year 2013 2012 disposal 2013

Leasehold land 4,928 11,503 16,431 16,431
Building on leasehold land 118,393 49,089 167,482 30,985 9,061 40,046 127,436
Plant and machinery 955,454 112,115 1,067,569 185,440 45,302 230,742 836,827
Pi‘r-:\st‘flgﬁ;::fngrher 30,705 12,572 43,277 2,615 3,118 5,733 37,544
Furniture and fittings 6,748 384 7,132 2,246 431 2,677 4,455
Vehicles 34,737 2,107  (1,086) 35,758 15,549 (407) 4,022 19,164 16,594
Equipment 32,403 2,032 34,435 6,882 2,624 9,506 24,929
Computers 4,980 492 5,472 3,764 774 4,538 934
1,188,348 190,294 (1,086) 1,377,556 247,481 (407) 65332 312,406 1,065,150

Additions
during
the year

Disposals
during
the year

2012

Description

DEPRECIATION

Adjustment
on
disposal

For the
year

Book value
as at June
30, 2012

Leasehold land 4,928 4,928 - 4,928
Building on leasehold land 71,007 47,386 118,393 24,201 - 6,784 30,985 87,408
Plant and machinery 418,608 536,846 955,454 149,606 = 35,834 185440 770,014

Power and other
installations 1,093 29,612 30,705 733 = 1,882 2,615 28,090
Furniture and fittings 4,898 1,850 6,748 1,905 - 341 2,246 4,502
Vehicles 31,694 6,031 (2,988) 34,737 13,333 (2,195) 4,411 15,549 19,188
Equipment 10,995 21,408 32,403 4,794 = 2,088 6,882 25,521
Computers 4,089 891 4,980 2,952 - 812 3,764 1,216
547,312 644,024  (2,988) 1,188,348 197,524  (2,195) 52,152 247,481 940,867
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4.1.2 Reconciliation of book value:
OO 2013 | 2012
Book value as at the beginning of the year 940,867 349,788
Additions during the year 190,294 644,024
Depreciation for the year (65,332) (52,152)
Disposals during the year at book value (679) (793)
Book value as at the end of the year 1,065,150 940,867
4.1.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated to:
Cost of sales 23 63,886 50,458
Distribution costs 24 762 843
Administrative expenses 25 684 851
65,332 52,152
4.1.4 During the year borrowing cost has been capitalized amounting to Rs. 0.69 million (2012: Rs. 20.46 million)
by using capitalization rate of 10.12% (2012: 14.71%).
4.1.5 The following operating property, plant and equipment were disposed off during the year:

R Book Sales Gain Mode of

Description €9g- value | proceeds | (Note 27) .ode o Particulars of buyer
No. disposal

Vehicle

Suzuki Swift SG371 1,086 679 1,015 336 Tender Mr. Syed Ahsan Raza

(Islamabad) - Outside
party

m 1,086 679 1015 336
m 2,988 793 1,826 1,033

4.2 Movement of capital work-in-progress

P
ower Plant and

machinery | equipment

and other
installations

Balance as at June 30, 2011 15,902 11,840 76,070 S 103,812
Capital expenditure incurred /

advances made during the year 33,092 18,510 460,776 512,378
Transferred to operating property,

plant and equipment (47,386) (29,612) (536,846) - (613,844)
Capital expenditure incurred /

advances made during the year 48,321 11,834 381,654 936 442,745
Transferred to operating property,

plant and equipment (49,089) (12,572) (112,115) (173,776)
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5.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

B cest e [ Amcrtisation B

Book value

fitt 1 i Amortisation
. . As at Addltlons Dlsp&?scds As at As at Adjustment For the As at as at rate
Description during during on June 30, %
July 01, June 30, July 01, ) year June 30, o
theyear  the year disposal per annum

9,161 2 - 9,161 1,638 - 916 2,554 6,607 10

2012 ERP System 7,229 1,932 = 9,161 854 = 784 1,638 7,523 10

5.1

o

7.1

8.1

The amortization charge for the year has been allocated to:

Cost of sales 23 684 633
Administrative expenses 25 232 151
916 784

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

Availableforsale securities - related party
Ordinary shares of a listed company
Cherat Cement Company Limited
221,239 (2012: 221,239) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/-each 12,874 6,553

LONG-TERM LOANS - secured, considered good

Loans to employees 7.1 333 464
Less: Due within one year shown under

current portion of loans 12 83 116

250 348

Represent car and other loans provided as per the Company's employee loan policy. These loans carry
mark-up up to 15% per annum (2012: up to 15% per annum) and are repayable within 3 to & years. These
loans are secured against the provident fund balances of the respective employees.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary difference:
Accelerated tax depreciation on operating property,

plant and equipment (74,685) (34,521)

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences:
Taxable loss 8.1 47142 62,659
Minimum tax 88,595 68,446
61,052 96,584

This represents unabsorbed tax loss upto tax year 2009 that is available for offset against future taxable
profits of the Company in the tax year 2013, after expiry of three years exemption period.

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 4,954 4,445
Spare parts 43,380 27,316
Loose tools 158 516

48,492 32,277
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10.

12.

13.

14.

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material
In hand
In bonded warehouse
In transit

Work-in-process
Finished goods
Polypropylene scrap goods

TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

544,111 476,000
227,274 :

278,347 150,969

1,049,732 626,969

48,892 28,167

70,187 115,591

2,314 630

1171125 771,357

1.1 633,907 430,164

17,966 17,966

651,873 448,130

17,966 17,966

633,907 430,164

Trade receivables are nondnterest bearing and are generally on 30 days term. Aging andlysis of trade debts

is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
-Within 60 days

LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Current portion of loans due from:
Employees

Advances -unsecured:
Suppliers
Letters of credit

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposit - earnest money
Shortterm prepayments
Insurance
Rent
Others

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Excise duty claim
Warehousing surcharge claim
Duty drawback

Sales tax receivable

Claim receivable
Others
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414,921 392,657
218,986 37,507
633,907 430,164
7 83 116
3,905 822
625 438
4,530 1,260
4,613 1,376
5,110 570
1,935 1,935
720 1216
704 582
3,359 3,733
8,469 4,303
169 169
517 517
3,509 -
57,561 51,496
2,578 4911
60 1,553
64,394 58,646




15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks:
Current accounts 18,710 29,986
Saving accounts 15.1 1,744 1,365
20,454 31,351
Cash in hand 86 96
20,540 31,447

15.1  Effective profit rate in respect of saving accounts is 6% per annum (2012: 6% per annum).

16. SHARE CAPITAL

16.1 Authorized capital

40,000,000 22,500,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-each 400,000 225,000

16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Issued fully paid in cash

9,817,500 9,817,500  Opening balance 98,175 98,175
10,327,500 - Issued during the year as right shares 103,275 -
20,145,000 9,817,500  Closing balance 201,450 98,175

7,395,000 7,395,000  Issued as fully paid bonus shares 73,950 73,950
27,540,000 17,212,500 275,400 172,125

16.3  During the year, the Company issued 10,327,500 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-each as right shares at a
premium of Rs. 10 /- per share in the ratio of 3:5 shares held as approved by the Board of Directors in its
meeting held on February 20, 2013. These shares are also listed on Karachi and Lahore stock exchanges
where the existing shares are listed and carry same characteristics as existing shares of the Company. The
effect of these shares has been taken in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share of current
and prior year.

The following is the detail of shares held by the related parties:

Faruque (Private) Limited 2,723,512 1,175,625
Cherat Cement Company Limited 1,772,380 1,107,738
Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited 1,367,380 854,613
Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited 1,383,280 864,550

17. RESERVES

17.1  Capital reserve
Capital reserve was created due to the issuance of shares on premium.
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This includes premium of Rs. 10/- per share received on the issuance of 10,327,500 ordinary shares as

right shares, during the year, net of issuance expenses of Rs. 4.91 miillion.

17.2 Unreadlized gain / (loss) on available-for-sale securities

This reserve records the fair value changes on availableforsale financial assets as required under the

relevant accounting standard.

18. LONG-TERM FINANCINGS - secured

From banking companies
Longterm loan
Term Loand 18.1 18,750
Term Loand| 18.2 400,000
Term Loandll -Tranch | 18.3 100,000

56,250
400,000

518,750
Less: Current maturity (58,750)

456,250
(37,500)

460,000

418,750

18.1

18.2

18.3

19.

This represents a longterm loan obtained from a commercial bank for the import of “Tuber and Bottomer”,
carrying mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 0.5% per annum. The loan is repayable in 8 equal
semi-annual installments commenced after 18 months from drawdown of the facility i.e., April 2010. The
loan is secured by way of first paripassu hypothecation charge of Rs. 200 million over plant and machinery
imported by the Company.

This represents a longterm loan obtained from a commercial bank under the Diminishing Musharika Scheme
for the import of Polypropylene Plant, carrying profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 0.9% per annum.
The loan is repayable in 10 equal semi-annual installments commencing after 2 years, i.e., from January
2014. The loan is secured by way of first paripassu hypothecation charge of Rs. 534 million over plant
and machinery imported by the Company.

This represents a long term loan obtained from a commercial bank for the import of Polypropylene Plant
amounting to Rs. 300 million out of which Rs. 200 million remains unutilized ot the year end. The loan
carries mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 0.6% per annum. The loan is repayable in 10 equal
semi-annual installments commencing after 30 months from first drawdown of the fecility i.e., from December
2015. The loan is secured by way of first paripassu hypothecation charge of Rs. 400 million over all present
and future p|c:nt and machinery of the Company.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 35,845 11,113
Bills payable 498,584 61,130
Accrued liabilities 27,141 14,236
Unclaimed and unpaid dividends 1,608 1,390
Payable to gratuity fund 19.1 2,377 3,006
Payable to provident fund 19.2 685 -
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 19.3 9,366 2,815
Workers' Welfare Fund 1,141 -
Refention money 788 1,477
577,535 95,167
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19.1

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

As mentioned in note 3.12.1, the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all eligible
employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation

was carried out as at June 30, 2013.

The fair value of scheme's assets and the present value of obligation under the scheme as at the balance

sheet date were as follows:

Staff gratuity fund liability:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Unrecognized actuarial losses

Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Amounts charged to profit and loss account:

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial losses recognized

Movement in the balance recognized in the balance sheet:

Balance as at July 01
Net charge for the year
Contribution fo the fund
Balance as at June 30

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation:

Balance as at July 01
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial losses

Balance as at June 30

Movement in the fair value of plan assets:

Balance as at July 01
Expected return
Contributions

Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial gain

Balance as at June 30

Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Expected rate of increase in salary level
Valuation discount rate
Rate of return on plan assets

32,361 24,934
(25,711) (16,839
(4,273) (5,089)
2,377 3,006
1,437 813
3117 2,926
(2,299) (2,437)
216 558
2,471 1,860
3,006 2,146
2,471 1,860
(3,100) (1,000)
2,377 3,006
24,934 21,307
1,437 813
3117 2,926
- (541)
2,873 429
32,361 24,934
16,839 13,125
2,299 2,437
3,100 1,000
s (541)
3473 818
25,711 16,839
9.5% 10.5%
11.5% 12.5%
12.5% 12.5%
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Comparisons for past years: | 2013 | 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | 2009 |

As at June 30

Present value of defined benefit obligation 32,361 24,934 21,307 19157 13,317
Fair value of plan assets (25,711) (16,839) (13,125) (11,643) (10,358)
Deficit 6,650 8,095 8,182 7,514 2,959
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 2,873 429 292 3,109 442
Experience adjustment on plan assets (3,473) (818) 284 1,018 576

(600) (389) 576 4,127 1,018

Composition of plan assets are as follows:

Special Saving Certificates and Term Finance Certificates 2,996 1,409
Mutual Funds / Shares 22,478 13,065
Amount in banks 237 2,365

25711 16,839

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on
gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.

The return on plan assets was assumed to equal the discount rate. Actual return on plan assets during the
year 2013 was Rs. 5.77 million (2012: Rs. 3.25 million).

19.2 Provident Fund

Size of the trust 60,113 45134
Cost of investments made 48,704 29,885
Fair value of investments 58,740 36,782
Percentage of investment made 97.95 98.11

The major categories of investment as a percentage of total assets of provident fund are as follows:

Government securities 12,003 2,985
Shortterm deposits 139 7,499
Others 47 971 34,650

60,113 45,134

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
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19.3 Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Balance as at July 01, 2,815 8,727
Interest thereon 28 54 37
2,869 8,764
Payments during the year (2,869) (8,764)
Charge for the year 26 9,366 2,815
9,366 2,815

20. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Running finances utilized under mark-up

arrangements 20.1 &20.2 636,483 536,840
Money market loans 20.1 &20.3 298,000 195,000
Foreign currency term finance = 25,942

934,483 757,782
Istisna'a and Murabaha 20.4 276,087 158,636
1,210,570 916,418

20.1  These facilities are obtained from various commercial banks amounting to Rs. 1,665 million (2012: Rs.
1,465 miillion) out of which Rs. 730.52 miillion (2012: Rs. 707.22 million) remains unutilized at the year
end. These facilities are secured against registered paripassu hypothecation charge over stocks and book
debts for Rs. 2,135.33 million and hypothecation charge of Rs. 140 million on all present and future plant
and machinery of the Company.

20.2  These facilities carry mark-up of 1 month KIBOR plus 1.25% and 3 months KIBOR plus spread ranging from
0.75% to 1.75% (2012: 1 month KIBOR plus 1.25% and 3 months KIBOR plus spread ranging from 0.75%
to 1.75%) per annum.

20.3  These are sub facilities of note 20.1 above and carry mark-up of 1 month KIBOR plus spread ranging from
0.7% 10 0.8% (2012: 1 month KIBOR plus spread ranging from 0.7% to 0.8%) per annum.

20.4 These facilities are obtained from various commercial Islamic banks amounting to Rs. 450 million (2012:
Rs. 450 million) out of which Rs. 173.91 million (2012: Rs. 291.36 million) remains unutilized at the year
end. These facilities are secured against registered paripassu hypothecation charge over stocks and book
debts for Rs. 600.33 million.

21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

21.1  Guarantees issued by a commercial bank 2,000 2,000
21.2 Letters of credit issued by commercial banks 520,851 449,782
21.3  Duties payable on bonded stock 33,125

22. TURNOVER - NET

Local sales 4,660,524 3,778,641
Less: Sales tax 645,681 521,763

4,014,843 3,256,878
Export sales 114,491

4,129,334 3,256,878
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23.

23.1

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

Duty drawback on export

Manufacturing overheads

Salaries, wages and benefits

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed

Fuel and power

Packing charges

Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

Amortization

Insurance

General office expenses
Vehicle running expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Communication expenses
Printing and stationery

Legal and professional charges
Freight and cartage
Subscription

Stores and spares parts - written off
Others

Work4inprocess
Opening stock
Closing stock

Polypropylene scrap goods
Opening stock
Closing stock
Sales

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock

Closing stock

23.1

5.1

476,000 387,178
3,401,836 2,925,256
3,877,836 3,312,434

(544,111) (476,000)
3,333,725 2,836,434
(3,800) -
3,329,925 2,836,434
127,370 79,413
19,893 15,472
62,072 32,008
41,449 28,101
287 171
4,964 456
63,886 50,458
684 633
17,413 17,410
36 9%
4,181 3,035
2,218 1,668
1,699 1,407
273 339
3,496 2,131
800 729
328 138
50 94
1,191 466
352,290 234,225
3,682,215 3,070,659
28,167 .
(48,892) (28,167)
(20,725) (28,167)
630 -
(2,314) (630)

(12,409) (8,033)

(14,093) (8,663)
3,647,397 3,033,829

115,591 60,412

(70,187) (115,591)

45,404 (55,179)
3,692,801 2,978,650

This includes expenditure in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund amounting to Rs. 3.28 million and
Rs. 2.11 million, respectively (2012: Rs. 2.22 million and Rs. 0.91 million, respectively)
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24,

24.1

25.

25.1

26.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries and benefits
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running expenses
Repair and maintenance
Communication expenses
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Printing and stationery
Depreciation

Freight and cartage
Export expenses

Others

24.1 11,416 12,664
3,374 1,503

874 864

47 5

322 131

35 27

1,169 1,076

937 743

4.1.3 762 843
33,876 21,257

1,872 51

181 237

54,865 39,401

This includes expenditure in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund amounting to Rs. 0.17 million and
Rs. 0.05 million, respectively (2012: Rs. 0.14 million and Rs. 0.48 million respectively)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Directors' fee

Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running expenses
Communication expenses
Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Legal and professional charges
Insurance

Subscription
Advertisement
Depreciation

Amortization

Repairs and maintenance
General office expenses
Utilities

Others

25.1 17,907 13,165
800 600

813 540

802 710

2,841 1,883

1,092 876

1,541 1,046

1,721 1,410

941 848

976 1,213

379 412

4.1.3 684 851
5.1 232 151
572 821

147 270

170 161

28 2

31,646 24,959

This includes expenditure in respect of provident fund and gratuity fund amounting to Rs. 0.42 million and
Rs. 0.31 million, respectively (2012: Rs. 0.33 million and Rs. 0.47 million, respectively).

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration
Donations

Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund
Exchange loss

26.1 1,326 1,416

26.2 81 746

19.3 9,366 2815
3,579 g

7,711 5,007

22,063 9,984
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26.1

26.2

27.

28.

28.1

29.

29.1

29.2

29.3

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee
Half yearly review and CCG certification
Tax and other corporate services

Out of pocket expenses

500 440
240 211
502 635
84 130
1,326 1,416

Recipients of donations do not include any donee in which any Director or his spouse had any interest.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return on saving accounts
Dividend income

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating property, plant and

equipment 4.1.5
Scrap sales

FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:
Long+term financings 28.1
Shortterm borrowings 28.1
Others:

Guarantee commission
Bank charges and duties
Interest on Workers' Profits Participation Fund 19.3

209 28
664 :
873 28
336 1,033

3,180 3,199
4,389 4,260
50,995 38,971
105,058 115,316
156,053 154,287
40 16

806 313

54 37
156,953 154,653

Last year, the Company was availing the subsidized mark up facility under the State Bank of Pakistan's
scheme for companies operating in the affected areas of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa province. The said scheme

expired on December 31, 2011.

TAXATION

The assessments of the Company for and upto the tax year 2012 have been completed or deemed to be

assessed.

The income of the Company was exempted from income tax for the tax years 2010, 2011 and 2012 under
clause 126F of Part | of Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. For the current year this
exemption was no more available. However, in view of tax losses, provision for current taxation is based
on 0.5% of turnover u/s 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Income subject to final tax regime has

been taxed accordingly.

Since the Company is liable to pay minimum tax only, therefore, no numerical tax reconciliation is given.
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after taxation (Rupees '000) 118,569 71,531

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 21,892,127 21,097,895
(Restated)

Basic earnings per share 30.1 Rs. 5.42 Rs. 3.39

30.1 There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Company.
31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior
management provides policies for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

It is the Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

The Board of Directors reviews policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:
31.1  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity
risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include longterm investment (availableforsale), longterm
financing and shortterm borrowings.

31.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in the market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from longterm and
shortterm borrowings obtained with floating rates. Borrowings of the Company are substantially obtained
in the functional currency.

To manage this risk, the Company may enter into interest rate swap arrangements in which the Company
agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between the fixed and floating rate interest amount
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount.

Sensitivity Analysis:

The fo||owinP fiﬁures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax:

Increase / Effect on
decrease in profit
2013 basis points before tax
KIBOR +200 (34,586)
KIBOR 200 34,586
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31.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expenses are
denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional currency).

Foreign currency term finance - Euro = 219
Bills payable - Euro 3,106 304
US Dollar 992 271

The following significant exchange rates have been applied at reporting dates:

Exchange rates - Euro 129.11 118.50
US Dollar 98.80 94.20

The management keeps on evaluating different options available for hedging purposes.

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Euro and US dollar
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax and the Company's

equity.

Effect of
translation of
Change in foreign Effect on

Euro rate currency equity
liabilities on
profit or (loss)

+10 (40,102) (40,102)
30 June 2013-Euro 10 40,102 40,102
+10 (2,801) (9,801)
30 June 2013-US Dollar
-10 9,801 9,801
+10 (6,198) (6,198)
30 June 2012-Euro
-10 6,198 6,198
+10 (2,553) (2,553)
30 June 2012-US Dollar
-10 2,553 2,553

31.1.3 Equity risk

The Company's listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about
future values of the investment securities.

The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Company's senior management on
a regular basis. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all major equity instrument
decisions.
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31.2

31.2.1

31.3

At the balance sheet date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 12.87 million. A
decrease of 10% in the share price of the listed security would have an impact of approximately Rs. 1.29
million on the equity or income depending whether or not the decline is significant and prolonged. An
increase of 10% in the share price of the listed security would impact equity with the similar amount.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. Aging analysis of trade debts is disclosed in note 11.1 to the financial
statements. The Company has a strong cregit control system and the Board of Directors reviews credit position
on a regular basis.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities

or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings or fo historical information about counterparty default rates:

Long-term investment

Counter party without credit rating 12,874 6,553
Trade debts

Customers with no defaults in the past one year 633,907 430,164
Cash at bank and short-term deposits

Current accounts - AT+ 18,710 29,986

Saving accounts - Al+ 1,744 1,365

20,454 31,351

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company applies prudent liquidity risk management by mcin’rqininisufﬁcienf cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At the balance sheet date the Company
has unavailed credit facility of Rs. 1,104.43 million (2012: Rs. 998.58 miillion).

Table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following reporting
dates based on contractual undiscounted payments. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Interest Bearing N

Interest
Bearing

Interest Bearing o

Less than One to el
one year five years

Interest
Less than One to Total B':eu:ing
one year | five years

Longterm

financing 58,750 460,000 518,750 - 518,750 37,500 418,750 456,250 - 456,250
Trade and other

payables - - - 567,028 567,028 - - - 92,352 92352
Accrued mark-up - - - 42,775 42,775 - - - 53,974 53,974
Shortterm
borrowings 1,210,570 - 1,210,570 - 1,210,570 916,418 - 916,418 - 916,418

1,269,320 460,000 1,729,320 609,803 2,339,123 953,918 418,750 1,372,668 146,326 1,518,994

Effective interest / yield rates for the monetary liabilities are mentioned in the respective notes to the financial
statements.
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Capital risk management

The primary obijective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong
credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing
and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholders value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended June 30, 2013.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any finance cost thereon, less cash and cash

equivalents.

The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Longterm financings including current portion 518,750 456,250
Accrued mark-up 42,775 53,974
Shortterm borrowings 1,210,570 916,418
Total debt 1,772,095 1,426,642
Cash and cash equivalents (20,540) (31,447)
Net debt 1,751,555 1,395,195
Share capital 275,400 172,125
Reserves 936,444 739,004
Total capital 1,211,844 911,129
Capital and net debt 2,963,399 2,306,324
Gearing ratio 59.11% 60.49%

The Company finances its expansion projects through equity, borrowings and management of its working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgedble,
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected
in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
techniques:

Level 1: quoted prices in active market for identical assets;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are
not based on observable market data.
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32.

32.1

32.2

33.

34.

As at 30 June 2013, the Company has only availableforsale securities measured at fair value using level

1 valuation techniques.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value measurement.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

Executives / Executives /
Key Employees Key Employees

Managerial remuneration 2,682 27,059 4,064 21,875
Housing allowance 1,207 8,922 1,829 6,815
Retirement benefits - 3,308 2,530
Utilities 268 1,939 407 1,490
Leave fare - 1,198 - 1,263
4,157 42,426 6,300 33,973

Number 1 17 1 12

The Chief Executive Officer is not drawing any remuneration from the Company.

The aggregate amount paid to the Directors as a fee for attending the Board of Directors' meetings amount
to Rs. 0.80 million (2012: Rs. 0.60 million).

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of group companies, directors and executives. The Company in the normal course
of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties,
remuneration of a director and executives and other transactions are disclosed in the relevant notes to the
financial statements. Other material transactions with related parties are given below:

Relationship

Nature of transactions

Group companies Sale of goods 430,111 486,693
Purchase of goods 7,204 4,434
Purchase of operating property, plant
and equipment - 10,440
Services received 22,518 16,526
Software consultancy charges 4,763 2,952
Dividends paid 6,004 10,696
Dividends received 664 -
Subscription received against
issuance of right shares 64,880
Other related parties Insurance premium 7,661 6,688

In addition, certain actual administrative expenses are being shared amongst the group companies.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of persons employed as at the year end were 68 (2012: 63) and average number of employees

during the year were 65 (2012: 60).
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

OHAMMED FARUQUE AMER FARUQUE

CAPACITY
Annual installed capacity as of June 30, 370,000 330,000
Actual production for the year 213,518 174,795

Actual production is in line with the industry demand. Further, the new line of polypropylene bags started
commercial production from June 2013.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 19, 2013 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

Subsequent to year ended June 30, 2013, the Board of Directors has proposed the following in its meeting
held on August 19, 2013 for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting:

Proposed final cash dividend @ Rs. 2.00 per share (2012: 55,080 25,819
Rs. 1.50 per share)

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
There was no reclassification that could affect the financial statements materially.
GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

Chairman Chief Executive
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Pattern of Shareholding

as at June 30, 2013
No. of Shares hold
Shareholders From To
170 1 to 100 5,205
253 101 to 500 83,365
210 501 to 1000 176,204
449 1001 to 5000 1,217,536
133 5001 to 10000 1,063,549
64 10001 to 15000 798,662
34 15001 to 20000 602,768
27 20001 to 25000 638,312
9 25001 to 30000 253,143
8 30001 to 35000 267,810
8 35001 to 40000 305,399
1 40001 to 45000 41,659
10 45001 to 50000 475,434
3 50001 to 55000 152,522
2 55001 to 60000 118,844
6 60001 to 65000 372,173
2 70001 to 75000 148,600
2 75001 to 80000 160,000
8 80001 to 85000 671,197
3 85001 to 90000 266,068
1 90001 to 95000 91,500
1 95001 to 100000 96,000
1 110001 to 115000 112,000
1 115001 to 120000 117,553
4 120001 to 125000 495,096
1 130001 to 135000 131,510
2 135001 to 140000 273,517
1 140001 to 145000 140,400
1 155001 to 160000 160,000
1 180001 to 185000 184,004
2 190001 to 195000 383,254
1 205001 to 210000 209,912
2 220001 to 225000 446,360
1 225001 to 230000 227,500
1 230001 to 235000 234,859
1 235001 to 240000 237,577
1 250001 to 255000 251,998
1 305001 to 310000 305,444
1 315001 to 320000 316,460
1 405001 to 410000 405,500
1 440001 to 445000 444,814
1 475001 to 480000 478,948
1 585001 to 590000 589,000
1 635001 to 640000 636,128
1 695001 to 700000 700,000
1 970001 to 975000 975,000
1 1295001 to 1300000 1,296,000
1 1365001 to 1370000 1,367,380
1 1380001 to 1385000 1,383,280
1 1770001 to 1775000 1,772,380
1 2530001 to 2535000 2,534,664
1 2720001 to 2725000 2,723,512
1440 27,540,000
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Categories of Shareholders
as at June 30, 2013

Shareholders’ Category No. of Shareholders Shares held

Directors, Chief Executive Office, their spouse(s) and minor children
Mr. Mohammed Faruque

1

1
Mr. Amer Faruque 1 135,124
Mrs. Amina Faruque W/o Mr. Amer Faruque 1 209,912
Mr. Mahmood Faruque 1 1
Mrs. Chaman Faruque W/o Mr.Mahmood Faruque 1 184,004
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani 1 73,600
Mtrs. Sakina Pesnani W/o Mr. Akbarali Pesnani 1 8,000
Mr. Aslam Faruque 1 237,577
Mr. Shehryar Faruque 1 192,828
Mr. Arif Faruque 1 444,814
Mr. Tariq Faruque 1 316,460
Mr. Abrar Hasan 1 2,400
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
Faruque (Private) Limited 1 2,723,512
Cherat Cement Company Limited 1 1,772,380
Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited 1 1,367,380
Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited 1 1,383,280
Executives 3 79,500
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 2 1,041,628
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 8 3,803,219
Mutual Funds
Golden Arrow Selected Stock Fund Limited 1 61,499
CDC -Trustee NAFA Stock Fund 1 19,992
General Public 1384 12,150,313
Others 28 1,734,492
Total 1440 27,540,000

Shareholders Holding 5% or more
as at June 30, 2013

Faruque (Private) Limited 2,723,512
Cherat Cement Company Limited 1,772,380
Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited 1,383,280
Atlas Insurance Limited 2,534,664
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Proxy Form

24th Annual

General Meeting

IMPORTANT 20 ] 3

Instruments of Proxy will not be considered
as valid unless deposited or received at the

Compang/ s Head Office ot Modern Motors Registered folio / participant’s
House, Beaumont Road, Karachi75530 ID No. and A/c. No.

not later than 48 hours before the time of

holding the meeting.

Number of shares held:

| / We

of

being a member of CHERAT PACKAGING LIMITED, hereby appoint

of another member of the company

as my/our proxy to attend & vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on Wednesday, October 30, 2013 at 11:00 a.m. and at any adjournment

thereof.

Signed this day of 2013.

WITNESSES:

1. Signature:

Name:

Address:

NIC or .
Please affix
Passport No. Signature Revenue

Stamp

2. Signature:

Name:

Address:

(Signature should agree with the
NIC or specimen signature registered with

Passport No. the Company)

Note: SECP circular of January 26, 2000 is on the reverse side of this form.



Circular

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
STATE LIFE BUILDING, 7BLUE AREA.
Islamabad, January 26, 2000.

Circular No. 1 of 2000

sub: GUIDELINES FOR ATTENDING GENERAL MEETING AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The shares of a number of listed companies are now being maintained as “book entry security” on the Central
Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It has come to the notice
of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of relevant documents in the matter of beneficial
owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC for purposes of attending the general meetings and for verification
of instruments of proxies. The issue has been examined and pending the further instructions to be issued in this
regard, the following guidelines for the convenience of the listed companies and the beneficial owners are laid down:

A. Attending of meeting in person by account holders and/or sub-account holders and persons
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded to CDS:

(1) The company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the CDC as per regulation # 12.3.5 of the CDC
Regulations.

(2)  In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are up loaded as per the regulation, shall authenticate
his identity by showing his original National Identity Card (NIC) or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

(3)  Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution /power of attorney with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

B. Appointment of Proxies:
(1) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the f)erson whose securities are
in group account and their re?istro’rion details are uploaded as per the Regulation, shall submit the proxy

from as per requirement notified by the company.

(2)  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

(3) Attested copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

(4) The proxy shall produce his original NIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

(5) incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted q|ongwith proxy form to the company.

sd

(M. Javed Panni)
Chief (Coordination)
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